Divyank Khullar I Associates

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditors’ Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF SINDHU TRADE LINKS LIMITED
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Sindhu Trade Links Limited (“the
Company”) which includes joint operations, which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone Financial
Statements, including a summary of significant accounting palicies and other explanatory information. ( herein
after referred to as Standalone Financial Statement).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the
Act') in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, its profit including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fuffilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Standalone Financial Statements.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters (‘KAM') are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

1. Key Audit Matter

1. Key Audit Matter
Investments

The Company has invested in equity and preference shares and government bonds as well, the carrying amount
of which is calculated by the management in accordance with Ind AS 32, 107 and 109 provided in Note 5 and
Note 15 of the financial statements.

Considering the materiality of the amounts involved, the significant management judgment is required in
estimating the guantum of diminution in the value of investments and such estimates and judgments being
inherently subjective, this matter has been identified as a key audit matter which is described in Note 2(j) to the
standalone financial statements. As at 31st March 2020, the company has made total foreign investments in
subsidiary of Rs. 43,416 Lakhs.
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Auditor’'s Response

Our audit procedures assessed the appropriateness of methodology and valuation model used by management
to estimate the value of investments.

Based on our procedures, we considered the adequacy of disclosures in respect of investments in the notes to
the standalone financial statements.

2. Key Audit Matter
Evaluation of Uncertain Tax Positions & Other Contingent Liabilities

The Company has material uncertain tax positions including matters under dispute which involves significant
judgment to determine the possible outcome of these disputes.

The Company also has material contingent liabilities including outstanding guarantees, counter guarantees and
omnibus counter guarantees to various banks and claims against the company under dispute which involves
significant judgment to determine the possible outcome of these disputes as mentioned in Note 40 to the
standalone financial statements.

Auditor's Response

Obtained details of completed tax assessments and demands till the year ended March 31, 2020 from the
management. We involved our internal experts to challenge the management's underlying assumptions in
estimating the tax provision and the possible outcome of the disputes. Our internal experts also considered legal
precedence and other rulings in evaluating management's position on these uncertain tax positions.

Our audit procedure on contingent liabilities included —

« Obtaining an understanding of the systems and controls implemented by management for recognizing
the guarantees.
Evaluation of purpases for which the various bank guarantees are provided.

« Our internal experts read and analysed external legal opinions/ consultations by management for the
disputes pending in various forums.

« Discussed with appropriate senior management regarding the claims against the company and
assessment orders.

« Assessed management's estimate of the possible outcome of the disputed cases.

3. Key Audit Matter
Related Party Transactions

During the year, the Company has generated major portion of revenue and has incurred significant amount of
expense with the related parties.

Ind AS 24 “Related Party Disclosures’, requires substantive disclosures for the related party transactions which
are disclosed in Note 46 to the standalone financial statements.

Determination of substance of the transactions and transaction price for such related party transactions is a key
audit matter considering the significance of the transaction value and the significant judgments involved in
determining the transaction value.

Auditor’s Response

« Our audit procedures included considering the compliance with the various requirements for entering in to
such related party transactions.
« We performed test of controls over related party transactions through inspection of evidence of performance
of these controls.
« We performed the following tests of details:
We have evaluated the relevant work orders and market price.
- We have read the approvals obtained from Audit Committee, Board of Directors and Shareholders
for the transactions.




We have assessed the disclosures to be made in accordance with Ind AS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS' REPORT
THEREON

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the Standalene Financial Statements and our
auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,

we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT FOR THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concemn basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.




« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

s Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e [Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order"), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1" a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended,

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company with
reference to these Standalone Financial Statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

(g) In our opinion, provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act 2013. With respect to managerial
remuneration, is not applicable on the company,

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Standalone
Financial Statements — Refer Note 40 to the Standalone Financial Statements;




ii. The Company do not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses;

ii. The Company do not have any dues on account of Investor Education and Pratection Fund.

For Divyank Khullar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

ivyank Khullar
Proprietor

M. No:- 528399
UDIN:- 20528395 AAAAR

New Delhi
Date:- 02/09/2020



ANNEXURE 1
TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SINDHU
TRADE LINKS LIMITED

The Annexure referred to in the Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the Company on the Financial
Statements for the year ended 315 March 2020, We report that:

1.

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

(b} According to the Information & Explanation given to us, The Company has a regular programme for
physical verification in a phased periodic manner, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regards to
the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) According to information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds/lease deeds of
immovable properties included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the Company.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted
loans to parties listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013

(a) The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to
the Company's interest.

(b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and repayments
or receipts of principal amounts and interest have been regular as per stipulations.

(¢) The principal and interest are not overdue in respect of loans granted to companies, firms or other
parties listed in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the
Act, with respect to loans and investments made.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to maintain the
cost records under sub section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, paragraph
3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including Provident fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Goods and Services
tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and Other Statutory Dues applicable to it.

(b) According to the information and explanations provided to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident fund, Employees' State Insurance, income-tax, Sales Tax, Goods and Service tax,
Duty of custom, Duty of excise, Value added tax, Cess and Other Statutory Dues were outstanding, at
the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Sales
Tax, Value Added Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Goods and Service Tax and Cess
which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute except the
following:-

| Forum where
| Name of the PERIOD Amount involved
Nature of Dues dispute is
Statute (A.Y.) (Rs. in Lakh) Ing
! Income Tax Act, Income Tax 2007-08 1892.92 High Court, Delhi
1961 2008-09




10.

11.

12.

14.

15.

16.

2008-10

2010-11
| Customs Act, 1962 | Custom Duty 2015-16 987.32 Principal
Commissioner,
Vishakhapatnam

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or
government or dues to debenture holders.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise any money by
way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and the term loans taken by
the Company have been applied for the purpose for which they were raised.

According to the information and explanations provided by the management, we report that no fraud by
the Company or ne material fraud on the Company by the officers and employees of the Company has
been noticed or reported during the year.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us managerial
remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act;.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act
where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone Ind AS
financial statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards. Further, according to
the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, provisions of section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations provided to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements
under clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and, not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations provided by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in
Section 192 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the provisions of Section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For Divyank Khullar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

New Delhi

vyank Khullar
Proprietor
M. No:- 528399

Date:- 02/09/2020



ANNEXURE 2

TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SINDHU
TRADE LIN KS LIMITED

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (i) OF SUB-SECTION 3
OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sindhu Trade Links Limited (“the Company”)
as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNALFINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial contrals over financial reporting with
reference to these Standalone Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these Standalone Financial Statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Financial
Statements.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING WITH
REFERENCE TO THESE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Financial Statements
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Financial Statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING WITH REFERENCE TO THESE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
Standalone Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Financial Statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these
Standalone Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.




OPINION

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these Standalone Financial Statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these Standalone Financial Statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Divyank Khullar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Proprietor
M. No:- 528399
UDIN:- 2052823 AAAAR

New Delhi
Date:- 02/09/2020



SINDHU TRADE LINKS LIMITED
Standalone Financial Statements

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For Divyank Khullar & Associates
Chartered Acrountants

Firm Registration No. 025755N

Divyank Khullar
Proprietor

Membership No. 528399
Place: New Delhi

Date: Q:;S;i_gi{'-‘fcfnﬂﬁﬁﬁlﬁ“{"ﬁ 3

02/09/ 220

[Rs. Lakh)
o Asat Asat
Rarkildys NOt®  3ystMar2020  31stMarch2019
ASSETS
(1} Non-current assets
(8} Property, plant and equipment 3 727742 9,303.42
(b) _Right to use asset 3 117.36 -
(¢} Investment property 4 661.68 674.39
(d)  Financial assets
[nvestment: 5 62,695.87 60,625.19
Loans 6 22,677.63 14,849.48
Qther financial assets 7 502.66 1,619.95
[e] Deferred tax assets [Net] 8 487.61 690.62
(f)  Other non current asseis 9 271.91 271.90
Total non-current assets 94,692.14 88,034.95
(2) Current assets
[a) Inventories 10 32359 258.48
(b] _Financial assets
Trade receivables 11 16,631.90 17,604.41
Cash and cash equivalents 12 1,721.47 2,179.10
Qther balances with banks 13 892.95 758.26
Loans 14 4,535.38 4471.15
Investments 15 6.89 2,364.83
QOther financial assets 16 5923.34 3,882.32
[¢] Other current assets 17 2,228.64 3.889.89
Total current assets 32,264.16 35,408.44
TOTAL ASSETS 1,26,956.30 1,23,443.39
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
(a) Equity share capital 18 5,139.76 5,139.76
{b] Other equity 19 56,472.03 49,119.61
Total equity 61,611.79 54,259.37
_{2) Non-current liabilities
{a]) Financial liabilites i
Lease Liability 7883 -
Borrowings 20 14,963.26 24,008.00
[b} Provisions 21 803.07 773.76
[c) Other non current liabilities 22 1,998.01 2,447 .45
(d) Deferred tax Liabilities (Net) 23 - -
Total non current liabilities 17,843.27 27,229.21
(3) Current liabilities
(a)  Financial liabilities
Lease Liability 3853 -
Borrowings 24 14,081.59 13,333.03
Trade payable
Total Outstanding dues of Micro & Small Enterprise 25 1,417.85 515.25
Total Qutstanding dues of creditors other than Micro & Small Enterprise 25 9,204.54 6,570.46
Other financial liabilities 26 18,572.45 16,540.29
(b) _ Other currentliabilities 27 2,169.16 1,282.09
{c)  Provisions 28 2,017.11 3,709.69
Total cmrrent liabilities 47,501.23 41,954.81
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,26,956.30 1,23,443.39
Background & Significant Accounting Policies 1&2

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors

Satya Pal Sindhu

Managing Director
DIN:002183%

=
.:-""'555
i Hooda

Chief Financial Officer
PAN : AATPH4946B

Director
DIMN 00006999

Sul
Company Secretary
M. No.: 26066



SINDHU TRADE LINKS LIMITED
Standalone Financial Statements

Swtement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended on 31st Maych 2020

S(7LL

(Rs. Lakh)
—— Not For the period ended For the year ended 31st
EASlogens . 31st Mar 2020 March 2019
Income
I Revenue from operation 29 85,142.10 1,14,043.09
Il Other income 30 2,145.95 1,207.92
IM Total income (I+11) 87,288.05 1,15,251.01
IV _Expenses
Cost of material and services consumed 31 51,636.39 69,597.72
Purchases of stock-in-trade 32 12,721.05 21,083.45
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade & finished goods 33 (213.22]) 23.21
Erployee benefit expenses 34 4,830.46 4,439.39
Finance cost 35 4,873.43 532438
Depreciation & Amortization 36 2,627.50 3,237.36
Other expenses 37 2,959.75 1,879.02
Total Expenses 79,435.36 1,05,584.53
V _ Profit/(Loss) before tax {1H-IV) 7,852.69 9,666.48
VI Tax expense: 38
-Current tax 1,926.20 3,648.90
-Deferred tax charge/(credit) 144,52 {993.35)
-Income tax for earlier years 12717 -
2,197.89 2,655.55
VII Profit/ (Loss) for the year (V-VT} 5,654.80 7,010.93
VHI Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
- Net actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 232.35 37.67
- Change in fair value of equity instruments through 0CI 1,523.75 509.12
-Income tax relating to above item (58.48) (190.94)
1,697.62 355.85
IX Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (VI-VIIT) 7,352.42 7,366.78
Earning per equity share (Face value of Rs. 10 each) 39
(1) Basic : 11.00 13.64
(2) Diluted 11.00 13.64

The accompanying notés form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For Divyank Khullar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 025755N

Divyank Khullar
Propriator

Membership No. 528399
Place: New Delhi

Date: o'L_i’gql,ll Tt
UDINL- Q0SLEIFIAALABZETYR

NS

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sannl 7 ~1
Satya Pal Sindhu Rudra Sen Sindhu
Managing Director Director
DIN: 00218355 DIN: 00006999

Vikas Hooda i Gupta
Chief Financial Office Company Setretary
PAN : AATPH4946B M. No.: 26066



SINDHU TRADE LINKS LIMITED
Standalone Finandal Stalements
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2024

0
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(Rs. Lakh}
a. Equity share capital
Balance as at 1 April 2018 5,139.76
Changes in equity share capital
during the year 2018-19 -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 5,139.76
Changes in equity share capital
during the year 2019-20 -
‘Balance as at 31 March 2020 5,139.76
b. Other equity

Other equity (refer note 19) fperie ot:‘tcl:’emr:}:oﬂr: i:;henswe
Particulars Secariiies | Cagitat ﬂapim{ Cannial Retained Remeasurement |  Fair va!ue of Total
premitiin, | vesevE Redemption T SRl of defined benefit . equity
" Reserve instruments

Asat 3ist March 2019
Balance as at 1 April 2018 7,312.49 76,47 12.00 2,481.33 31,945.40 (7486) 3 41,75283
Profit/{luss) for the year & = - - 7.016.93 - 33122 7,342.15
Other comprehensive income/(luss)
(et of tax) - - - - = 24.63 - 2463
Total income/ (Toss) for the year - = - - 7,010.93 24.63 331.22 7.366.78
Balance as at 31 March 2019 7,312.49 76.47 12.00 2,481.33 38,956.33 [50.23) 331.22 49,119.61
As at 315t March 2019
Balance as at 1 April 2019 7,312.49 7647 12.00 248133 3895633 [56.23) 331.22 49,119.61
Profit/{lass) for the year 3 - - = 5,654.80 = 1,523.75 717855
Other camprehensive fncome/{loss)
[bet of tax) o c = = - 173 86 - 17284
Total incouie/(loss] for the year - - - - 5,654.80 173.86 1,523.75 7,352.42
Balance as at 31 March 2020 7.312.49 7647 12.00 248133 | 44.611.13 _123.64 1,854.97 56,472.03

Securities Premium
Securities Premium Is created due to premium on issue of shares. The reserve will be utilised in accurdance with the provisions of section 52 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

Capital Reserve
Capilal Reserve will be utilised in accardance wilh the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Capital Redemption Reserve

As per Companies Act, 2013, capital redemption reseive is created when campany purchases (ts own sharcs out of free reserves or sceurities gremiom. A sum
equal to the naminal value of the shares so purchased is transferred to capital redemption reserve. The reserve will be utilized In accordance with the provisions
of section 69 of the Companies Act, 2013.

General Reserve

The general reserve is a free resecve which is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the general reserve
is created by a transfer from ene component of equity to anather and is not an iten of other comprehensive income, itemns included in the general reserve will not
be reclassified subsequently to statement of profit and loss,

Retained Earpings
Retzined earnings represent the amount of accumulated eamings of the coimpany.

Other Components of Equity

Other Compotieits of Equity consists of remcssyrement of met defined benefit liability/ ssset, equity instruments fair valued through other comprehensive
income, net of tases,

As per our report of even date attached

For Divyank Khullar & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Acveuniants B e el e .
Firm Registration No. 025755N P ;, 4 u === ] il
'.I \_HE‘.&.B": - Satya Pal Sindhu Rudra Sen Sindhus
T Maenaging Diregtor
Diﬁ'ﬁﬁ({huuar W&‘
Proprictar )
Membership No, 528399 Yilas Hooda Suchi Gupta

Place: New Delhi
Date: & L.'{UQ.IJ_L;?.CJ-

Unmi- Jeg 2L29G AAAABZE M2

Chief Finunicial Officer N Comppny Secretury
PAN : AATPH49468 M. No.: 26066
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{Rs. Lakh)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit Before Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 7,.852.69 9.666.48
Adfustment for: .
Deprediation and amortisation 2,627.50 3,237.36
Finance cost 4,873.43 5.324.38
Provision for gratuity expense 275.70 272.19
Profit/(Loss} on sale of other investment 1,363.99 165.32
Dividend Ingome {1.89) (1.54)
Profit on sale of as=et {244.11) {0.16)
Unrealised Logs/(Gain) on non-current security deposits (1.03) 2,65
Foreign exchange gain/{Loss) [1,708.64) (1,045.50)
Sundry Balances Written off - =
Profit from joink venture (325.32) -
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 14,712.32 17,621.18
Adjostment for :
Increase/ (Decrease} in other financial liabilities 2.032.17 (60536)
Increase/ {Decrease) in other liabilities {2,745.74) 139.42
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables 3532.69 2,562.22
Decrease/ (Increzse) in othey assets 3,335.08 460.13
Decrease/ (Increass) in inventories (65.11) 151,78
Devvease/ (Increase) in trade receivables 972.51 (1,421.14)
Decrease/ (Increase) in other current financial aseats (2,105.25) 33396
Cash Generated from operations 19,668.67 19,242.19
Taxes paid [net} 1,801.05 3,124.36
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities 17,867.62 16,117.83
Cash from investing activities
Payments for property, ptant and equipment / capital work-in-progress (613.77) (1,859.76)
Proceeds from property, plant and equipment 311.66 243
Investment made in subsidiary {101.85) (5,580.24)
Investment made in associates - (355.00}
Investment made in others {26250) (2,205.81)
loans given (6,119.52) (391.22)
Dividend received 1.89 1.54
Proceeds/( made) Bank deposits & other depuosits 983.43 288.94
Investmient sale in other 1,136.71 39.81
Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities (4,663.73) (10,059.31)
Cash flow from financing activities S
Net proceeds of long-term and short-term borrowings (B,296.08) 300.94
Repayment of security deposils & advance received (449.44) (78.06)
Finarnice cost paid {4,866.79) {5.209.19)
Interest on Lease hold payment (6.3}
Leage hold Payment (4257)
Net cash flow from/(used in) inancing activities {13,661.51) {4,986.31)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (457.63) 1,072.21
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 2,179.10 1,106.88
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (Refer note 13) 1,721.47 2,179.09

As per our report of even date attached
For Divyank Khullar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Fier.\IRegisUation No. 025755N

Divyank Khnllar
Proprietar

Membership No. 528399
Place: New Delhi

Date: ez f II}Q! - K
UM QeE2RZQQAAM B4 7

Satya Pal Sindhu
Managing Director

W2

Vikas Hooda
Chief Financial Gffice
PAN : AATPH4946B

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rudra Sen Sindhu
Dirgctor
DIM : 00006999

M. No.: 26066
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1

COMPANY INFORMATION

a)

Sindhu Trade Links Limited (referred as "STLL' or 'the Company’) engaged in activities of Transportation, Loading
& Mining Services and trading of Spares, Fuel and HSD.

The Company is a domestic public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India and is listed on the
Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. [BSE]. The registered office of the Company is 129, Transport Centre, Rohtak Road,
Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi-110035, India.

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

Statement of Compliance

The separate financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the Accounting
Standards notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) as per Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS)) Rules as amended from time to time and other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed
thereunder.

Presentation of Financial Statements

These financial statements have been prepared in Indian Rupee which is the functional currency of the

Company.

These financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments
which are measured at fair value or amortised cost at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. All assets and liabilities
have been classified as current and non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle.

Based on the nature of services rendered to customers and time elapsed between deployment of resources and the
realisation in cash and cash equivalents of the consideration for such services rendered, the Company has
considered an operating cycle of 12 months.

The statement of cash flows have been prepared under indirect method.

Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of
Ind AS requires the management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of income and expense for the periods presented.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the dafe of the financial statements, which may cause a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are in respect of
impairment of investments, useful lives of property, plant and equipment, valuation of deferred tax assets and fair
value measurement of financial instruments, these are discussed below. Key sources of estimation of uncertainty
in respect of revenue recognition, employee benefits and provisions and contingent labilities have been discussed
in their respective policies.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Company has taken the useful life of property, plant and equipment as per the life given in the Companies Act,
2013.

Valuation of deferred tax assets

The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period. The

policy has been explained under note 2(t).

Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures

The Company has accounted for its investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture at cost less
impairment loss (if any). The policy has been further explained under note 2(i).
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Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended 31st March 2020 =

b}

Property, plant and equipment (including Capital work-in-progress)

c)

d)

Freehold land is carried at histerical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent cost are included in the asset’s carrying amount or Tecognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset
is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance expenses are charged to profit or less during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Assets acquired but not ready for use are classified under Capital work in progress and are stated at cost
comprising direct cost and related incidental expenses.

Investment Property
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not used in the

production of goods and services or for the administrative purposes is classified as investment property.
Investment property is measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.
Subsequent expenditure related to investment properties are added to its book value only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the itern will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. Investment properties are depreciated using the straight line method over the estimated useful
lives. The Company’s depreciable investment properties have a useful life of 55 years.

Depreciation/Amortisation
Assets in the course of development or construction and freehold land are not depreciated.

Other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any provision for
impairment. Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset less its residual value.
Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost, less estimated residual value, of each asset on a
written down value basis over its expected useful life as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies
Act, 2013,

Individual items of assets costing upto Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition.

Major inspection and overhaul costs are depreciated over the estimated life of the economic benefit derived from
such costs. The carrying amount of the remaining previous overhaul cost is charged to the statement of profit and

loss if the next overhaul is undertaken earlier than the previously estimated life of the economic benefit

When significant spare parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items {(major compenents) of property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and changes in
estimates, if any, are accounted for prospectively.
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e}

Leases

g)
)]

{ii) Non-financial assets

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116-Leases effective 1st April, 2019, using the modified retrospective method. The
Company has applied the standard to its leases with the cumulative impact recognised with no impact on retained carnings
on the date of initial application (1st April, 2019). Accordingly, previous pericd information has not been restated.

The Company evaluates each contract or arrangement, whether it qualifies as lease as defined under Ind AS 116.
The Company as a lessee, Assesses, whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract involves:-

a) the use of an identified asset,

b) the right to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use of the identified asset, and
¢) the right to direct the use of the identified asset.

At the date of commencement of lease, the Conipany recognises a right-of-use asset ("ROU”} and a corresponding lease
liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a Ic- .ze, except for leascs with a term of twelve months or less (short
term leases) and leases of low value & ...ts, For these short term and leases of low value assets, the Company recognises
the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets (it includes prepayment for all the future rentals) are initially recognised at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease lability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subscquently mcasured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Right-of-use asscls are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the leasc term and useful life of the underlying asset.

Cost Recognition

Costs and expenses are recognised when incurred and have been classified according to their nature. The costs of
the Company are broadly categorised in cost of material and services consumed ,employee benefit expenses, cost
of equipment and software licences, depreciation and amortisation expense and other expenses, Cost of material
and services mailnly includes cost towards transportation charges , FOL , HSD and Spares consumption .Employee
benefit expenses include salaries, incentives and allowances, contributions to provident and other funds and staff
welfare expenses. Other expenses mainly include fees to external consultants, facility expenses, travel expenses,
communication expenses, bad debts and advances written off, allowance for doubtful trade receivable and
advances (net} and other expenses, Other expenses is an aggregation of costs which are individually not material
such as commission and brokerage, recruitiment and training, entertainment, etc.

Impairment of assets

Financial assets {other than at fair value)

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. In determining the
allowances for doubtful trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected
credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix, The provision matrix takes inte account
historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss
allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and allowance rates used in the provision matrix.
For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-months expected
creditlosses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition.
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Nates to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020
Tangible and intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever

there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-inuse) is determined on an individual

asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. [n

such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount An impairment loss is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.]
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h) Foreign Currencies Transactions and Translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate that approximates the prevalent exchange
rate on the transaction date. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the year-end
rate. Any resultant exchange differences are taken to the statement of profit and loss, except -

a) When deferred, in Other Comprehensive Income as qualifying cash flow hedges; and

b) exchange difference arising from translation of external commercial borrawing is capitalized in terms of para
D13AA of IND A5 101.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost are
translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset in one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument in ancther entity.

Financial Assets

Initial recognition

In the case of financial assets, not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), financial assets are
recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date,

i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset,
Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

(a) Financial Assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business
model with an objective to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of
the financial asset give rise on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate ("EIR") method. Impairment gains or losses arising on these assets are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

(b} Financial Assets measured at fair value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) if these financial assets
are held within a business model with an objective to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows or
to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates, to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit
or loss.
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Impairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies the expected credit loss ("ECL") model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and credit risk exposures.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.
Simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether
there has heen a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that
there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognitien, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL,

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e, all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original
EIR. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL impairment loss allowance [or reversal) recognised during the period is recorded as expense/ income in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition of Financial Assets

The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity.

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
contral the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

Equity investments

All equity investments in the scope of Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, are measured at fair value. For equity
instruments, the Company may make an irvevocable election to present the subsequent fair value changes in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI). The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit or loss, even on sale of investment.
Equity instruments included within the FVTPL (fair value through profit and loss) category are measured at fair
value with all changes in fair value recognized in the profit or loss.
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Financial Liabilities

Initial Recognition

Financial liabilities are classified, at initfal recognition, as financial liabilities at FVTPL, loans and borrowings and
payables as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liahilities designated upon
initial recognition as FVTPL. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability
at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per
impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation. Amortisation is
recognised as finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After injtial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or
redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that

are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
de-recognition of the original liability and recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultanecusty.
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_b

Fair value measurement

k)

1}

The Company measures financial assets and financial liability at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Eair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a
liahility is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are avaitable to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
ohservable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 - The fair value of financial instruments that are measured on the basts of entity specific valuations using
inputs that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs).

The Company’s Valuation team determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement,
such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring
measurement.

Inventories

Consumables,Fuel & HSD, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value; cost is computed
on first-in-first out basis. The cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Obsolete, defective, unserviceable and
slow/nonmoving stocks are duly provided for. Net realisable value is estimated selling price in ordinary course of
business less the estimated cost necessary to make the sale,

Cash and cash equivalents

In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other
short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts.
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.
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m) Cash flow

Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby profit for the year is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments
and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flow. The cash flows from operating,
investing & financing activities of the company or segregated. The company considers all highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to know amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.

Recognition of Income

The Company earns revenue primarily from providing services of transportation, mining and loading as well as
trading of fuel and HSD.

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework for
determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognised. Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue
and Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts, The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 using the cumulative effect method.
The effect of initially applying this standard is recognised at the date of initial application (i.e. April 1, 2018). The
standard is applied retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed as at the date of initial application and
the comparative information in the statement of profit and loss is not restated - i.e. the comparative information
continues to be reported under Ind AS 18 and Ind AS 11. The impact of the adoption of the standard on the
financial statements of the Company is insignificant.

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government and reduced by any rebates and trade
discount allowed.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before income is recognised.

i. Income is recognised on accrual basis and provision is made for all known losses and liabilities.

ii. Revenue from sale of goods is recognised net of rebates and discounts on transfer of significant risks and
rewards of ownership to the buyer. Sale of goods is recognised net of sales tax, value added tax and GST.

iil. Revenue from services rendered is recognised on prorata basis in proportion to the stage of completion of the
iv. Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument

but does not consider the expected credit losses,
v. Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

vi. Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
vil. Forex Gain
vili, Share of profit JV

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plan
The Company’s contribution to Provident Fund and Employees State Insurance Scheme is determined based on a

fixed percentage of the eligible employees’ salary and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on accrual basis.
The Company has categorised its Provident Fund, labour welfare fund and the Employees State Insurance Scheme

as a defined contribution plan since it has no further cbligations beyond these contributions.

Defined benefit plan

The Company’s liability towards gratuity, being a defined benefit plan are accounted for on the basis of an
independent actuarial valuation based on Projected Unit Credit Method. Gratuity liability is funded by payments to
the trust established for the purpose.

Service cost and the net interest cost is included in employee benefit expense in the Statement of profit and loss.
Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions
and are recognised immediately in ‘other comprehensive income’ as income aor expense.




SINDHU TRADE LINKS LIMITED

Standalone Financial Statements _S' ,44
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p) Borrowing costs

)

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition/ construction of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. All other
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Borrowings and other financial liabilities

Borrowings and other financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value (net of transaction costs incurred).
Difference between the fair value and the transaction proceeds on initial recognition is recognised as an asset /
liability based on the underlying reason for the difference.

Subsequently all financial labilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Borrowings are eliminated from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss. The gain / loss is.recognised in other equity in case of transactions with
shareholders.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer the
settlement of the liability for at Jeast 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade receivables

A receivable is classified as a “trade receivable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of services rendered
in the normal course of business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured atamortised cost using the EIR method, less provision for impairment. There was no provision for

Trade payables

A payable is classified as a ‘trade payable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods purchased or
services received in the normal course of business, These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial year which are unpaid. These amounts are unsecured
and are usually seftled as per the payment terms stated in the contract. Trade and other payables are presented as
current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Trade creditors are
further classified into MSME & Non MSME . MSME creditors are determined only on the basis of certificate received
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t)

Taxation

u)

i. Tax expense recognised in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax not recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

ji. Current Income Tax

Current income tax liabilities and /or assets comprise those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating
to the current or prior reporting periods, that are unpaid at the reporting date. Current tax is payable on taxable
profit, which differs from profit or loss in the financial statements. Calculation of current tax is based on tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred income
taxes are calculated using the liability method on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities and their tax bases.

iii. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that the underlying tax loss or deductible temporary
difference will be utilised against future taxable income. This is assessed based on the Company’s forecast of future
operations results, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any
unused tax loss or credit.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of tax income or expense in profit or
loss, except where they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the related deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or equity, respectively.

iv. Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

v. Tax credit is recognised in respect of Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act,
1961 based on convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax within the statutory time frame
and is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. From the current FY19-20, company adopted for new tax regime
defiend U/S 115BAA of the IT Act 1961. Consequent to adoption of secdon 115BAA of the IT Act 1961, MAT
provisions are not applicable.

Provisions and Contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can he made of the amount of the obligation.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence

wottld be confirmed by the ¢ccurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within

the control of the Company. Such liabilities are disclosed by way of notes to the financial statements.

Segment Reporting

The Chief Financial Officer of the Company has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker {CODM) as
defined by Ind AS 108, “Operating Segments”. Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the CODM. The accountingpolicies adopted for segment reporting are in conformity
with the accounting policies adopted for the Company. Revenue and expenses have been identified to segments on
the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment. Income / Costs which relate to the
Company as a whole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, have been included under
Unallocated Income / Costs. Interest income and expense are not allocated to respective segments (except in case
of Financial Services segment).
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~w} Deferred Reveniue and Unbilled Revenue

x}

Amounts received from customers or billed to customers, in advance of services performed are recorded as
deferred revenue under Other Current Liabilities. Unbilled revenue included in Other Financial Assets, represents
amounts recognised in respect of services performed in accordance with contract terms, not yet billed to
customers as at the year end.

Significant management judgements in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

When preparing the financial statements, management makes a number of judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
assets or liabiliies affected in future pericds.

Impairment of non-financial assets

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or cash-generating unit
based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to discount them, Estimation uncertainty relates to
assumptions about future operating results and the determination of a suitable discount rate.

Depreciation and useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking into
account their estimated residual value. Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the
assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation to be recorded during any reporting period. The
useful lives and residual values are based on the Company’s historical experience with similar assets and take into
account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation for future periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.

Recoverability of trade receivable

Judgments are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining whetlrer a
provision against those receivables is required. Factors considered include the credit rating of the counterparty,
the amount and timing of anticipated future payments and any possible actions that can be taken to mitigate the
risk of non-payment.

Provisions

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow
of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The
timing of recognition and quantification of the lability require the application of judgment to existing facts and
circumstances, which can be subject to change. Since the cash outflows can take place many years in the future, the
carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and adjusted to take account of changing facts
and circumstances.

Defined benefit obligation {DBO)

Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of critical underlying assumptions such as standard rates
of inflation, mortality, discount rate and "anticipation of future salary increases, Variation in these assumptions
may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.
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Defined contribution plan

A)

B}

Amount of Rs. 177.15 Lakh (31 March 2019 Rs. 91.20 Lakh) pertaining to employers' contribution to provident
fund, pension fund, labour welfare fund and administration charges is recognized as an expense and included in
"Employee benefits " in Note 34. )

Defined benefit plan:

Gratuity plan:

The Company maintains a gratuity provision where in lump sum benefits linked to the qualifying salary and
completed years of service with the Company at the time of separation. Every employee who has completed 5
years of continuous service is entitled to receive gratuity at the time of his retirement or separation from the
organization whichever is earlier. However the condition of completion of 5 years of service is not applicable
where separation is on account of disability or death of an employee. The gratuity benefit that is payable to any
employee, is computed in accordance with the provisions of “The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972”.

The Gratuity fund

The following table sets forth the status of the gratuity plan of the Company and the amounts recognised in the
Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss:

(Rs. Lakh)
Particulars For the year  Fortheyear
ended ended

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation

Present value as at the beginning 834.55 600.04
of the year

Included in profit and less account

-Current service cost 222.36 22650
-Interest cost 58.42 46.50
-Past Service COST - S
-Benefits paid (5.07) (0.81)

Included in other comprehensive income
-Actuarial loss/ (gain) arising
from change in
financial assumptions -
experience changes (232.35) (37.67)
Present value of the obligation

877.90 834.55

at the end of the year
Particulars As at 31 March As at31 March

2019 2018
Present wvalue of unfunded 877.90 834.55
obligations
Net liability
Amounts in Balance Sheet
Liability 877.91 834.55
Net liability is bifurcated as follows:
Long term 803.07 773.76
Short term 74.83 60.79

Net liability _ 877.90 834.55
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Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date are as follows
Economic assumptions:
The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary escalation rate. The discount rate is generally based
upon the market yields available on Government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of the
liabilities and the salary growth rate takes account of inflation, seniority, prometion and other relevant factors on
long term basis. The assumptions used are summarized in the following table:

Asat Asat
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Discount rate p.a. 7.00% 7.75%
Salary escalation rate p.a. 7.50% 7.50%
Demographic assumptions:
Asat As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Retirement age 58 years 58 years
Mortality IALM (2006-08) IALM (2006-
08} Ultimate
Ultimate table table
Employee turnover 18 - 30 years- 18 - 30 years-
5% 5%
31 - 40 years- 31 - 40 years-
3% 3%
41 - 50 years- 41 - 50 years-
2% 2%
51 and above- 51 and above-
1% 1%

Sensitivity Analysis:

The key actvarial assumption to which the benefit obligation results are particularly sensitive to discount rate and
future salary escalation rate. The following table summarizes the impact on the reported defined benefit obligation
at the end of the reporting period arising on account of an increase or decrease in the reported assumption by 50

basis points.
Year ended 31 March 2020 Year ended 31 March 2019
Particulars . Salary . Salary
Biscount rate Discount rate

escalation rate escalation rate
Increase (decrease) on plus 100 798.36 970.00 760.69 920.40
bps
Increase (decrease) on minus (971.40) (798.01) (921.05) (759.90)
100 bps

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does
provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown

These sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in isolation and
assuming there are no other changes in market conditions at the reporting date
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Expected maturity analysis

i)

fii}

¥)

aa)

The expected maturity analysis of defined benefit obligation (in absclute terms, i.e undiscounted) is as follows:

As at 31 March Asat 31 March

Particulars 2020 2019

Less than 1 year 74.83 38.99
1-2 years 93.46 54,54
2-5 years 94.14 98.17
More than 5 years 708.93 491.57

The weighted average duration to the payment of defined benefit obligation is 17 years (31 March 2018: 18

Risk Analysis:

The above defined benefit plan expose the Company the following risks:

Interest rate risk

The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. If bond yields fall, the
defined benefit obligation will tend to increase.

Salary inflation risk

Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation.

Demographic risk:

This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality,
withdrawal, disability and retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligation is not
straight forward and depends upon the combination of salary increase, discount rate and vesting criteria. It is
important not to overstate withdrawals because in the financial analysis the retirement benefit of a short career
employee typically costs less per year as compared to a long service employee.

Fair value measurement

Management uses valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active market
quotes are not available) and non-financial assets. This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent
with how market participants would price the instrument. Management bases its assumptions on observable data
as far as possible but this is not always available. In that case management uses the best information avajlable,
Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the
reporting date.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share data for its equity shares, Basic and diluted earnings
per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to owners of the equity shares of the Holding
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Government Grants

Government grants including any non-monetary grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be complied with.

Government grants are recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis over the perieds in
which the related costs, for which the grants are intended to compensate, are recognised as expenses.

Government grants related to property, plant and equipment are presented at fair value and grants are recognised
as deferred income.

Exceptional Items

When items of income and expense within statement of profit and loss from ordinary activities are of such size,
nature or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the enterprise for the period, the
nature and amount of such material items are disclosed seperately as exceptional items.
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ah} Events after reporting period

Adjusting events are events that provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting
period. The financial statements are adjusted for such events before authorisation for issue.
Non-adjusting events are events that are indicative of conditions that arose after the end of the reporting
period. Non-adjusting events after the reporting date are not accounted, but disciosed.

ac) Rounding of ameounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest Lakhs as per
the reguirement of Schedule 11], unless otherwise stated.

2 (B) Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of the Company's Financial Statements requires management to make judgement, estimates
and assamptions that affect the reported amount of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomas that
require a material adjustinent to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in next financial years.

a)  Recoverability of Trade Receivables
Judgements are required in assessing the recoverahility of overdue trade receivables and determining whether
a provision against those receivables is required. Factors considered include the credit rating of the
counterparty, the amount and timing of anticipated future payments and any pessible actions that can be taken
to mitigate the risk of non-payment.

b} Provisions
The timing of recognition and guantification of the liability (including lifigations) requires the application of
judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change. The carrying amounts of
provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and revised to take account of changing facts and
circumstances

¢}  Globhal Health Pandemic on COVID-19

The cutbreak of COVID-19 pandemic across the globe and in India has contributed te a significant decline and
volatility in the global and Indian financial markets and slowdown in the economic activities

The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic will impact the Company's results will depend on future
developments, which are highly uncertain, including, among other things, any new information concerning the
severity of the COVID-19 pandemic and any action to contain its spread or mitigate its impact whether
government-mandated or elected by the Company. Given the uncertainty over the potential macro-economic
condition, the impact of the global health pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date of
appraval of these financial results and the Company wili continue to clesely monitor any material changes to
future economic conditions.
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(Rs. Lakh)
e s e As at 31st March  As at 3ist March
Lo 2020 2019
Groxs Carrying amount
Opening Gross CarTying Amount 693.81 59981
Addjtion during the year +
Closing Gross Cartying Amount 699.81 699.81
Accumnulated Depreciaiion
Opening Accumulated Depreciation 2542 12,71
Depreciation Charge 12,71 12.71
Closing Accumulated Depreciation 38.13 2542
Net Carrying Amount 661.68 674.39
Fair Value 1,689.03 1,737.28
Detatls of Rental income derived from Investment Property:
Rental income derived from inveshuent properties 10181 10549
Direct aperating expenses (including repairs and mainienance) generating rental incotne 2642 47.07
Income arising from investment properties before depreciation 75.38 58.42
Depreciaion 12.71 12.71
Income arising from investment properties (Net) 62.67 45.71

Preniizes given on Residential Rental basis
The Company has given Investment properties on residentizl rental hasis. These rental arrangements are for 11 months period.

Estimation of Fair Value
The fair valuation is based on current prices in the active market for similar properties as declared and provided by the management
The main inputs used by the management in determining the fair value are quantum, area, location, demand, restrictive eniry to the
complex, age of building and trend of fair marketrent in village, Garuda Nagar, Dipka area.

5 Investments (non current) At ij{l}.;tuMarch a5 :;ésltg 3

a) Idavestment in equity shares
i} Unquoted investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries at Cost:
Hari Bhowomt Communications Privite Limited 2,711.38 2,711.38
25,70,700 (Prev Year: 25,70,700) Equity shares [ully paid vp

Indus Automintives Private Limited 5150 51.50
5,15,000 (Prev Year: 5,15,000) Equily shares fulty paid up

Param Mitra Resources Pre, Ltd 43,412.85 43,311.00
6,86,03,425 (Prev Year: 6,86,03,425) Equity shares fully paid up

Sudha Bio Power Privalte Limited 1,10000 1,10000
90,10,080 (Prev Year: 90,10,000) Equity shares fully paid up

O¢enia Resource Pty Ltd 323 323
5.000 (Prev Year: 5,000) Equity shares fully paid up

iii) Unquoted investments in equity instraments of associates at Cost:
Shyam Indus Power Solutions Private Limited 9,811 68 9,811.68
2,37.58,115 {Prev Year; 2,37,58,115) Equity shares fully paid up

Indus Best Mega Food Park Private Limited 863598 863.98
84,89,800 (Prev Year: 84,89,800) Equity shares fuily paid up
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(Rs. Lakh)
Note no. 5 Continue..
As at 31st March As at 31st March
Investments (Don current) 2020 2019
Param Mitra Investments Limited 369.49 369.49
34,86,233 (Prev Year: 34,86,233) Equity shares fully paid up
Tandem Comnrnercial Private Limited 168.00 188.00
18,80,000 (Prev Year: 18,80,000) Eguity shares fully paid up
iv) Unquoted investments in equity instraments of other companies at FVTPL:
Indus Portfolio Private Limilsd 18.79 24.80
3,43,590 (Prev Year: 3,43,590) Equity shares fully paid up
¥) Unquoted investments in equity instruments of other companies at FYTOCE:
Aryan Ispat & Power Pvi Ltd 2,954.84 149493
58,50,000 (Prev Year: 58.50,00) Equity shares fully paid up
vi) Investment in quoted equity shares at FVTPL:
Safnik Finance & fndustries Limited - 136.12
(Prev Year: 9,03,841) Equity shares fally paid up
Reliance communications pvt Itd 0.12 074
17,951 (Prev Year: 17,951) Equity Shares fully paid up
0.12
61,485.86 60,066.85
Note no. 5 Continue.,
Asat31stMarch  Asat31st March
Investments (non current) 2020 2019
b) Investment in assaciate unquoted preference shares at Cost
Indus Best Mega Foed Park Private Limited 490.19 490,19
49,01,860 (Prev Year: 49,010,860 ) Preference shayes fully gaid up
€] InvestmentinJV
S8 Mining [V 37532
d} Investmentin others nnquoted preference shares at FVTOCI
Aryan Ispat & Power Pyt Ltd. B5.87 43.44
1,70,000 (Prev Year: 1,70,000) Prefervine shares fully paid up
Shiv Coal Benification & Power Pyt Ltd. - =
35,40,000 (Prev Year:35,40,000) pieference shares fully Paid up
e) Investment in others unquoted preference shares at FVTOCI
Sweastic Power & Mineral resources Pvt Lid 23392 -
2,12,5000 (Prev Year: NIL) Prefei -nce shaies fully paid up
1,185.30 533.63
F) Investmentin bonds at Amortised Cost
Govt of India Bond 2023 24.71 24.71
Bonds of Fare vatue 100/- each
24.71 24.71
Grand Total 62,695.87 60,625.19
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- (Rs. Lakh)
6 Loans (Unsecured and considered good at Amortised Cast) ARSRAISIBNE | s S0 1GHS inactt
2020 2019
Loan & Advances to Relaled Parties 22,677.63 14,849.48
22,677.63 14,849.48
7 Other financial assets (Non-current at Amortised Cost) As at 31st March Asat31st March
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated) 2020 2019
Security deposits
- Deposit with Banks (refer note no. 13) 479.20 1,598.03
-With Others 23.46 2192
502.66 1,619.95
8  Refler Note No.23
9 Other non carrent assets(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated) Kk zlllsztoM Axac ;;it;l
Predepusit for appeal (Secvice tax & Customs) 11.81 11.80
Capital Advance 5.00 5.00
Balance With Income Tax departmenl 255.10 25510
27191 271.90
10 Inventories{valued at the lJower of cost or net realizable value) BRI AR S5y,
2020 2619
Stores & spares 222.43 224.53
0il & Lubricants 101.16 3395
32359 258.48
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(Rs. Lakh)
< As at 31st March As at 31st March
11  Trade receivables 2020 2019
Trade receivables
Secured and considered good - 17.08
Unsecured and considered good 16,631.90 17,587.33
16,631.90 17,604.41
2 Asat31stMarch  Asat31stMarch
12  Cash, cash equivalents and other bank balances 2020 2019
Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:
Balance with banks :
-In current acconnts 183 10 143811
-kn depusit accounts 1,474.39 651.34
Cash in hand 63.98 89.65
1,721.47 2,179.10
r As st 31st March Asat 31st March
13  Other balances with banks 2020 2019
Other balances with banks consist of the following:
Deposit with Banks™ 2,846 54 3.007.63
Less -Deposits with banks maturing within 3 months (1,474.39) (651.34)
Lesis : Depnsits with banks maturing after 12 manths [479.20) _{1,596.03)
-892.95 758.26
*Hypothecaiad to Banks for security for Debt Service Reserve Arcount & others
C J : Asat31stMarck  Asat 31st March
14  PFinancial Assets - Current {at Amortized Cost) 2020 2019
Loans & ICD
Lozn to Related Parties - -
Loan to Other Parties 4,535 38 4,471.15
4,535.38 4,471.15
i5 Financial Assets - Cuwrrent Investments (At Fair value through Prefit and Loss) AEHE :gitoh‘larch At zzitghiarch
Quoted Equity shares, fully paid-up 689 213852
Tnvestment in rmutaal funds - 22631
Refer (Annexure - 1)
6.89 2,364.83
p As at 31st March 4s at 31st March
16  Other financial assets (current) 2020 2019
Secured and considered good
Loan to othars 14300 143.00
Unsecured and considered good
Unbilled revenue receivable 2,507.55 890.50
Security deposit 160.05 244 85
Advance portion for which value to be received 893.72 1,203.17
Relenlion Money 1,959.02 1,048.95
Share application money given 250.00 351.85
5,923.34 3.882.32
As at 31st March As at 31st March
17  Other current assels 2020 2019
Advance to vendors for guods & services 414.54 664.75
Advance to employzes 15.75 849
Prepaid expenses 124.52 92.an
Unclaimed GST [nput - 1597
Curvent tax receivable 1.673.83 3,107.60
2,228.64 3.889.89
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(Rs. Lakh).
. Asat3listMarch  Asat 3ist March
19  Other equity 2020 2019
Capital reserva
Opering balance 7E47 7647
Adq: Addditsin during the year = 3
Closing balance 7647 7647
Capital redemption reserve
Oypesing bslamce 1z2.00 12.00
Add: Addiiun during the year - -
Closing balance 12.00 12.00
Securities premiom
Gpening halance 7,31249 731249
Add: Addition daring the year = e:
Clasiag balance 7.312.49 7,312.49
General reserve
Opening halance 2,48133 242133
Add: Additon during the yeat - =
Clostng balance 248133 2,481.33
Swplus in the statement of profit and Joss
Opening hatance 3923732 331,870.54
Add: Profilf[Less] for the yesr RATE80 701053
Add:Qther Comprehiensive Incosue /[Lass) of the year 163762 35585
Closing balance 46,589.74 39,237.32
Total 56,472.03 49,119.61
28 8 S ¢ Asat31stMarch  Asat 31st March
e e 2020 2049
Secured Loan
Froen banks* 25,277.79 34,07T4.07
Lesz: Procesalag lews pending amortiaadion 15645 24046
Lezs: Amount discloaed wnder the head "Orher current financial iab3ies” (refer note 26) 10,157.55 GRl541
*Ancsine-2 attarhad 14,963.36 24.008.00
L Asat3istMarch  Asat31st March
21  Provisions (ren-current) 2020 2019
~Provision for gratuily 40307 77376
803.07 773.76
< = As at 31st March As at 31st March
Lt
22 Other Non Curreat Liabifities 2020 2019
Advance payments revetveal for which value to be given 74486 1,196.84
Sivurity deposit received 1,251.15 125059
1,998.01 244745
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Asat3istMarch  Asat3istMarch
8/23 Deferred tax assets/Lishilities (Net) e il
() The analysis of Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilities is as follows:
Deferred tax assets ansing on acconat of
-Provision for gratuity 22095 29163
-Property, plant and equipment 30394 621.21
524.89 912.84
Deferred tax Hfability arising 0n accoznt of
setisalion of Security Depesit - 0,92
=ment of loan at amo 34.37 84.10
-Valuation of Equity sharzs hodd as fivestoent (2.09 137.20
37.28 22222
Net deferred tax asset/(deferred tax Liability) 487.61 690.62
(i} The movement in deferred income tax asscts and (fiabilities) doring the year is as follows:
Net Ralance Net Balance Net Balance
Movement in deferred Recognised in| Recognised in Asat Recognised in L
tax balances Asat profit or loss ocl 31 March | profitorless Boetyprmatin SC1 Asat
1 April 2018 31 March 2020
2019
Deferred tax asset
Frovision of gratuity 207 66 97.00 (13.04) 29163 (12.20) {5e.58) 22035
Prope (57.91 - 31727 -
,:"" rg’;’:b"t”"d L 718,12 62121 L 30354
Amn‘rﬁs:-h‘nn of Secerity - ‘
it 020 (1.13) 5 0.9z 0.92 = 0.00
-Messursmemnt of oan at - - - - - -
Other jlems - - = = = 2 =
Total Deferred tax 109.96 815.00 {13.04) 511.92 (328.54) (58.48) 524.90
Deferred tax lability
-Propermy. plant and equi = 2 o = 4 -
Medparewmt of laan ar L3
P 123.36 (35.07) - 84.10 (44.72) - 3537
Valuakion of Equity
shiares hodd as G558 (159.24) (177.51) 13736 {133.29) - (2.69)
lncegement
Total Deferred tax 22174 (178.35) (177.91) 221.30 (184.02) - 3728
Hability
Deferred tax
\/{Liability] (net) (11179} 993,34 164.87 690.62 (144.52) (58.48) 487,61
24  Borrowings (curtent) Asat g ;;t;'larch Asat ;;sitharch
Laans repayable on demand (secured):
Bauk overdraft*
CC fram {101 Bank Ldisiied 50038 -
CC from Indtasind RBank Limited 591 [i]
CC fromn HIREC Band 1,005 95 99152
Bills Discousifing -HDFC Bank 38050 4,000.00
Unsecured Loans
1CD taken 1,180.38 464.08
Losan frem divector £,495.06 AR 63
Loan from other 2550 -
1408159 13,333.03

Footoote:

* Nature of security for cash credits and working capital demand loans
i Cash Crecit of B 5.00,37,549 (Prev year: Rs. NIL) from [C1C] Rank is secured against Pari parsu charge with HDFC Bank & Indoslad [fank on the entire
stacks of raw malwiial , showes gte and book: debis receivaliles etc and Secanel pati passu charge on the property of M/s Sindhu Roallars Ltd. The

facility veus taken with a limit of Rs. 5 ctesred from TCICT Busk cair

il Cash Credit of Rs. 90490713 (Prev year 9A020,160) froam Tnd
#ts of the company alosagwith the other Joi
situated n Tifra, Bilaspur (CG.). The fa ility allivsrs to the

entire curreat =

ill Cash Creditof Re 10,05,85,947 (Previous yesr Rs. 9,91,52,284) and [aasce dis

i

rist rate 2t MCLR + 3.75% pa.

Ind Bank {g secured thuwegh first pari passa charge by way of hypothecaiion on the
i, 1CIC] Bank and HDFC Bark aod 2nd charge on the property of the commpany
¥ ba wse Rs. 10 Crores for ils working capital regutrement or & £odt of MCLR + 2%,

awling of Rs. 3R R7,50,414 /-from HDFC Bank i5 zecused by way of st
sis of the commpany along with atlier leaders Le, ICIC] Pank and Indusind Bank snd saclusive charge on land and building
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(Rs. Lakh)

25  Trade payables Asat glo;toMirCh Asat 3;it9Mh
Trade payahies for goods & services

Total cutstaisling dwes for Micro, Small & Metivm Enterprise * 1,417.85 519.25

Total nutstanding dues of other trade payahles 9,204,54 657046

10.622.39 7.089.71

Dues To Micro And Small Roterprises

The Company has certain duss to suppliers reglsiered urnder Micro, Small and Melinm Bnierpitess Develograent Act, 2005 ((MSMED Act). The

disclusires pursoant to the seid MEMED Acl are as fivflows :

Particulars Asat31stMarch  Asat3istMarch
2020 2089
(a) The principal aniowist yesnsiniag unpaid to any supptier at the end of the year. 141785 5i9.25

() Interest due rewaining wigred to any supplier atthe end of the year.

(€) The amouint of interest paiif by the buyer in tersmis of sertion 16 of the MSMED Act,
2004, alang with the anwiunt of the payment made to the sappliar beyond the appeinied
day during the year.

{d) The arauunt of inierest due and payzble for the pesind of deldy in maklig payment
[which have besn paid but beyonid the appuinted day dusing the year) but willwut zdiding
the dilirest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006,

(e) The ameunt of interest accrued ard tenufiieg uspaid at the end of each avcaumting
year.

(f) The arwnnt of further iniecest reorining due and pazable even in the susceeding
years, until sorh date when the inderest does abose are ackially paid to the small

enterprisat. for the purpese of disallowsice of a drductible exgrrlizure under section 23
of the MEMED Act, ZU08,

Disclosugg of payahle to vendars as defined unider the “Micrs, Smrll and Mediom Eaterprise Developmrent Act, 20057 is hased on the infemation

available with the Company regarding the simtus of registration of such wendors under the s4id Act, as per the initmation reveived from them on

requiats made by the Company. Theve are no overdue prinvipal spanuts / fntidsst payzble amonnts for delayed paymenss to such vendors at the

Bzlamre Shewt dale. There are po delays in paymwnt mode to such sappliers during the year or for any earlier years and accordingly there Is no

nierost pald or autstssding inteerst in this regecd in respect of pagment made during the year or on bal=nce brought furward fram pievians year.

= Asat3l1stMarchk  Asat 3ist March
26  Other financial labilities [Current) 2020 2019
Current maturitiss of long term barmowings 10,157.98
Adwence frum Delitars 622,19
Eetentien meney from suppliers & Contrartars 55.25
Expenuzz payahle 7,106.49 5,807.33
Dues i gmiplugess 62654 668.5%
18,572.45 16,540.29
st Asat3istMarch  Asat31stMarch
27  Other current Liahilities 2020 2049
Sissutary duss payahle 2,169.16 1,282.99
2,169.16 1,282.09
Asat3istMarch  Asat31st March
28 P hinE it
Keyisioiy Garrei) 2020 2019
Fravision for emplives benefits 7493 6079
Pruvisian for ingosie tax 1,642.29 254250
2,017.12 3,709.69
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; For the year ended For the year ended 31st
A evenyc fnpn g erabions Sie Wi oial March 2019
a) Transportations, logistics & Construction
Construction Receipts 313.10 667.03
Grading Receipts 25.20 25.20
Loading Recreipts 7.234.61 9,873.67
Support Services to Mining 19,949.45 16,392.22
Profit on sale of assets - 0.16
Transportation Receipts 43,470.51 62,554.39
Water Sprinkle Receipts 694.86 68551
Equipment Hire Receipts 2.25 -
71,689.98 90,198.18
b) Trading of Qil , Lubricants & Spares
Sale of diesel, petrol & lubricants 6,836.22 21,716.50
Transportation Receipts 101.55 124.43
Sale of Spare Parts 3,285.20 -
10,222.97 21,840.93
c} Finance Operations
Interest Income 2,669.33 1,904.64
Other Financial Services
Dividend Income 1.89 154
Share of profit from JV 32532 -
Credit Balances written ofT 61.24 -
Misc. [ncome 171.37 97.80
3,229.15 2,003.98
Grand Total 85,142,10 1,14,043.09
, For the year ended For the year ended 31st
ALEDERCT ke 31st March 2020 March 2019
Other non-operating income
Foreign exchange gain(Net) 1,708.64 1,045.50
Unwinding of discount on non-current security depoesits 1.03 &
Tnsurance claim received 46.15 1.35
Rental income 146.02 161.07
Profit on sale of aveat 24411 -
2,145.95 1,207.92
. ’ For the vear ended For the year ended 31st
31 Cost of materials and services consumed 31st March 2020 March 2019
Construction Charges 304.79 537.11
Fol & HSD 11,756.61 14,814.48
Stores & Spares 1,165.38 4,294.07
Transportation, Loading annd Handling Charges paid 37.968.94 49 559.76
Water Tanker Expenses 44067 392.30
51,636.39 69,597.72
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. For the year ended For the year ended 31st
32 Purchases of Stock in Trade 31st March 2020 Maxch 2019
Purchase of oil and lubricants $,611.92 21,083.45
Purchase of Spare parts 6,109.13 =
12,721.05 21,083.45
. . . For the year ended For the year ended 31st
33 Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade & finished goods 315t March 2020 March 2019
Inventeries at the beginning of the year 33.95 57.16
- Qil and Lubricants 33.95 5716
Invenitaries at the end of the year 24717 33.95
- Qi and Lubricants 2474 3395
- Spare Parts 222.42 =
Decrease / (increase) during the year (213.22) 23.21
For the year ended For the year ended 31st
34 Employee benefit expenses 31st March 2020 March 2019
Salaries, wages and bonus 4,062.48 3,753.97
Contribution to provident and other funds
-Provident 164.98 66.03
-ESI & NPS fund 1217 2517
Workmen and staff weifare expenses 190.06 201,22
Gratuity paid during the year 5.07 081
Provision for gratuity 27570 27219
Director's remuneration 120.00 120.00
4,830.46 4,439.38
5 For the year ended For the year ended 31st
H i e e 31st March 2020 March 2019
Interest expense from financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Interest & Finance charges Paid 4,857.90 4,957.31
Other borrowing cost
Processing fecs 8.90 326.46
Interest on Lease hold Assets 6.63
4,873.43 5,283.77
b Pl For the year ended For the year ended 31st
36 Depreciation and Amortizatioin Expenses 315t March 2020 March 2019
Depreciation on property, plant and eguipment 257222 3,224.65
Depreciation on investment property 12.71 12.71
Depreciation on Lease hold Asset 4257
2,627.50 3,237.36




SINDHU TRADE LINKS LIMITED

Standalone Financial Statements 5 ‘7,4—4

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 31st March 2020

(Rs. Lakh)

37 Othier expenses For the year ended For the year ended 31st

31st March 2020 March 2019
Advertizemient & Publicity Exp. 2.08 2.15
Bank charges 37.00 26.25
Busliness Promotion Expenses 0.22 0.44
Commission & Brokerage Exp 15.97 33.68
Computer Running & Maintenance 5.79 9.45
Conveyance exp 36.24 3654
Corporate Sacial Responsibilities 72.60 73.60
Electricity & Water Expense 19.59 25.73
Generat Expenses 2811 5213
Guest House Expenscs 638 B.43
Insurance expense 211.70 177.13
Legal & proi= -innal charges 281.96 35034
Listing Fee 451 445
Loss on Sale of Investment 1,355.66 48 84
Loss on Investment me:~ured at FVTPL 8.32 116.48
Interest & Penalty on Tav 5 178.70 40.61
Printing & Staticnery 17.63 19.08
Property Tax 10.13 10.13
Rates, fees & Taxes 172.57 25881
Rent Expenses 35.08 74.70
Unwinding of discount onr non-current security deposils = 2.65
Vehicle Running & Maintenance 250.31 239.26
Office Repair & Maintenance 90.95 20048
Statutory auditor’s remuneration 39.10 35.10
Telephone & Fax Charges 18.26 21.01
Tour & Travelling 29.15 50,17
Feight Charges 15.02 -
Sundry balance written off 16.72 -
2,959.75 1,919.63
* Statutory Auditor's Remuneraton
Audit fees 39.10 35.10
Total 39.10 35.10
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38 Incomie Taxes Expense For the year ended For the year ended
Tax expense/(credit) recognized in the Statement of Prefit & Loss: 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Current Tax
Current Tax on taxable income for the year 1,926.20 3,648.90
Total cusrent tax expense 1,926.20 32,648.90
Deferred Tax
Deferred tax charge/ (credit) 144.52 (993.35)
Total deferred incame tax expenses/ (credit) 144.52 (993.35)
Income Tax for Earlier Years
[ncome tax paid for earlier years 127.17 -
Total income tax expense for earlier years 127.17 -
Total income tax expense 1,943.55 2,655.55
T For the year ended For the year ended 31st
gs per share 31st March 2020 March 2019
a. Profit/(loss) atiributable to equity bolders
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity halders 5.654.80 7.010.93
b. Weighted average number of equity shares
Number of equity shates of Rs. 10 each at the beginning of the year 5,13,97,626 5,13,97,626
Number of equity shates of Rs. 10 each at the end of the year 5,13,97,626 513,97,626
it i a
Weighted a'verage nL_Lmber pf equity shares of Rs. 10 each at the end of the year 5,13,97.626 513.97,626
for calculation of basic earnings per share
¢. Basic and diluted earnings per share (a/b) 11.00 13.64
d. Nominal value per share {in Rs.) 10.00 10.00
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Annexure-1 to Note 15 {Rs. Lakh)

As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019
Particulars Units Amounts Units Amounts
Investments measured at Fair Value through Profit & Loss
Andhra Cement Ltd. - 15,000 0.24 15,000 1.46
Aravali Securities & Finance Ltd. 25,000 0.62 25,000 0.85
Ferro Alloys Corpotation Ltd. 15,000 0.64 15,000 1.22
RDB Industries Ltd. . 5,000 0.90 5,000 1.78
Shree Bhawani Papets Ltd. 40,000 1.55 40,000 1.76
Shree Ram Mills Ltd. 3,000 1.11 3,000 1.11
Shyam Telecom Ltd 10,000 0.65 10,000 2.05
[ C T Limited ) 500 0.00 1,000 0.03
Malwa Cotton Spinning Mills Ltd 200 0.01 200 0.01
Hindustan Motors Ltd. 1,000 0.03 1,000 0.07
LP. Rings i.td. 100 0.04 100 0.15
Jagan Hitech Lamps Ltd. 4,700 0.78 4,700 0.75
Standard Capital Markets Ltd. 5,000 0.06 5,000 0.08
Carrier Airconditioning & Refrigeration Ltd. 1,600 0.16 1,600 0.16
IFCI Ltd 2,000 0.08 2,000 0.39
Lakshmi Vilas Bank Ltd. - - 29,99,926 2,129.95
Varanium Dynamic Fund : - 2,29,211 22631
Total Cwrrent Investments 6.88 2368.13




SINOBY TRADE LINKS LIMITED

Staodatone Fimsscial St s = 7Ll
Nesles to the financial staiementy for the yeac esded 315t March 2019 e
Anmeoure-2 ko Note 20 (Rs. Lakh)
FARTICULARS TOTAL LONG-TEEM B OWING MON-CURRENT PORTION CHRERENT MATURITTES
LONG TERM BORROWINGS 3”::;‘;““ 35:&;“" 3]5;:;.;3(}1 MSTMARFHZOL9 ol S1ST MARCH 2019
Secured torm lesas
- By haaks g f ISXFETS S5.119.81 24 T 180,157.38
25.277.79 3407425 15.119.81 2440 B2 10,157.98
* _Loan from haoks as staled above ncludes Lhe followiogs:
Bank/Finanrial Institution Facitity Total Nou-current portion
1161 F Bank i Term Lo 1397600 £,540 00 1020160 2,77440
2 SHE| Sqgeipmel Famaic e B pirs & ] 3 07 27443
3 10EC Bank Limited - 10157 - = - 10187
4 Keisk Mzhindrg Bank Ltd. Fuoperty 39023 &t 21 34438 $TEI4 5306 6107
5 itnaboalod Bande Liniited Lekiy Aguist Firtgeisy - anase - - Ty
6 Wuslak Mubiidra Prime Ltd. Cor Loan- Audi 2 - 1534 - - - 16.34
7 (e Pl i - 409 - - - &NR
8 HIoFC Bank i - 1194 - - - 1596
9 HIFC Bank Lisied o - - - 1212
10 SeF! Espeipessnl - - - - ra7
11 Taus Capseil Flnescial 2 . - - - 3
12 HUFC Bl Law ™ 435 - - - 435
13 HUB Fjmees - 3705 - - - Fras
14 Tats Capitat = 12897 e x o TIRaT
15 1000 Bank i Teem Loam 1,560 00 ST 1,PS7N0 1,000.50 49000 SEAN0
16 Sularam Fpence Lid 250 ez 2 250 250 p X}
17 Sussboram Fimet Ltd, .72 47.56 S 324 772 4242
18 Susllmiin Fiasscs Lud. 300 3712 - 200 EX) 3412
19 Tata Capital Famanclal Se Refmamce Vebinls Laan 2752 328 0.8 2252 2352 13334
Relimume Yebhide [oan 1231 .80 r 1581 1%.81 74:5%
=i-Lal Euguipisssas T 4145 i U 74 4486 4155 t#aTé
wnt Laan &1730 247D 6480 &30 LTS
23 HOFC lhmk cial Eqriprent Lesn Z100 3532 21.00 1553 1432
24 Tata Mo wat Lean LR L] 6L T8 24520
25 fuds Daad L5, Esgef proient Lo L= 1] 8773 REBR 3447 3085
26 MEEC Bank Limii—] bt 75134 57330 19348 i)
27 poky Tsmie Led 5274 11048 L & 17791 16435
28 A1 Bank Lix &30 EIT00 214397 a2
29 SRNT Bipulpme Prluats Limined sP407 15155 13213
30 Tatz Capital Flesnoiul Sevviwes Led a4z 13827 22215
31 HiC B el ER438 ph B
32 Sysolarwm Mt Ld 5L 00 1R6H5
33 Inibs Raoi | dan'siait 1786 - g
34 TOEC Hank Led phai ) S0GE S2E0
35 rowC RankLbd i =L 12146 1I%A3
36 Tatz Capital Fuvsoe AL 1033 11444
37 HOFCBank i HES? 20575 §2.1
38 Sundares Finsmoe Lid Loy . 2732 1.1% 125
39 £ Equipment Flisses Caspirmnilal Egedpemnt Loan 237725 1
e [ C—— T smae 50
43 A0K Eypodpraeed Commes 43157 3054
43 Kb Bani Ltd. saciit Bvin AR 174
43 Tabz Capital Led i Lol - 233
%4 Taz % Faiwe Lis - 255
45 Tata Capsial Fivam sl = L. 13324 5.2
46 Tata Capital Financisl Seriives Lid. 6332 &5
47 Jods Bank Lol wxia] Bl Lodil 11302 5941 54.2
48 Tats Capikal Finses Ta Seevio s Ll sl Eupuipmssnt Liun 18013 15223 17is
49 Tars Capitil Fiivess fiaf Serwiees Lul st Eguegsn-al Loon 565D 4337 42,3
50 Seendssom Flosos Lid tiial Egeeineil Loan Ti68 25 £0.1
51 Kresls Mabvidry Hush Ltd. Commmrreial Eaped gl Loan 183 52.48 475
52 Ashi sk, Lok [ ot foan 4703 2748 S
53 Suselarsm Finsoce Lid, Conmmnrinla! Eynipsent Loan 5105 ik 447
54 SRE! Bpilpmesl Term luin {000 156076 =
55 Az Bauk Comprmprcinl Eypwigsssnt, Lown - 1610 - 4z2.10 -
56 i - 17542 = 70.73 3
57 Commmureia) Bpalyment Lasn - 3654 - 41257 -
58 Suialurmm Fismt Led, Commmrratsl Bgpuipment Loan - 16485 - 7492 -
Total 25.277.79 34,074.25 15,119.81 2424884 10,157.98 S.RIS.42
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Anpexure-2 ko Nole 20
*
Natare of Seprity /Guaranise & terms of repaymeent of principal

SN Name of Bask Finamnlal Insithallen BerTuwer
11667 B el Simding Trade lioks Lid,
2 SHEI Bigd it Finance Pivits Liniled Sieddbuy Trade Links Lid,

3 HOFC Bawk Lire it Sundhu Trade Links Ltd.

Sindhn Trade Links Lid.

-~

Kk Mahindra Bank Ltd,

5 Jurdiestnd Bamk Liseied Sindbu Trade Links Lud
6 Hutak Mahio:dra Prime Led. Sivethil Trade Links Lod
7 HIBEC fank Limised

@

HOFC Bank Limited Singdhu Trade Linky Ltd.

-

HOFE Barok Liwisad Sindhu Trade Livis Lod.

10 SHEIEy Sitdhu Trade Links Lid.

sl Finanet Privata Lioifiad

11 Tatz Capitit Finamial Sivulhu Trade Links Lid,

12 kg Bank Limited Sinsdhy Trade Links Ltd.
13 HNg Finaocis] Secvices Ltd. Rindhu, Trade Links Lid.
14 Tata Capital Finanvial Soodhu Tradd links Lid.
15 JUIEN Bank Lineiies] Siadhu Trade Linke Lid,
16 Swinbarsm Finaoce Lrd Sindhy Trade Lioks Ltd.
17 Swndaram Finace Lid, Siandbu Trade Links Ld,
18 Sumiaiam Fisuace Ltd Sinathi Trade Links Lid,
19 Talz Capital Fina sl Sevvives Ltd Rt Trade Links Lyd.

2

=1

Tats Capital Fiwnis) Sersioes Led Sindhu Trade Links Lrd.

21 Tate Mednrs Fiyasg Linsited ey Trade Links Lid,

22 Tatz Molurs Fimane Limiied Rivlbin Trade Links Lid.

23 B0FE Bank Livrited ) Trade Links Lid,

24 Tats Mriiois Fian# Lin Siaglhu Trade Links Lid.

25 Axiz Rank Ltd. Sieslhu Trade Links Lid.

25 HIOFC Bank Limited Siadhy Trade finder Led

27 Axis Baok Lid Sindhu Trade Links Lid.

Z8 HI¥C Bank Licytod Situ?hu Trade Links Lid.

29 SREI Eyo’pineul Froance Private Lisited Siredhu Trade Livds Led.

wondhu Trade Linkg Ld, I

Repayrment of
Term Loan

24 Qaarteely
Froallivsirg

18 Mhaahly

Irstalesnts

171 M-
[nrmalre

40 Mewithly
Irestalivnais

35 Mt by

Thstallarenis
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2020 2019

40 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(to the extent not provided for)

A. Qutstanding guarantees and counter guarantees to varlous banks, in respect of the guarantees given by those banks in favor of various

guvernment authorities and others
In respect of subsidiaries of the company:
i. Param Mitra Coal Resources Pte Lid.

(Corperate Guarantee given Bellorophan Mauritius Ltd (Novated by Chmera Partmers Limited) and
Newport Advisors Limited of US$ S Million (Prev Year: 69.17), Estimated at exchange rate of 75.39

Rupees per USD)

il. Qceania Resources Pte Ltd.

{Corporate Guarantee is given of US$ 63 Million to ICICI Bank (Prev year: US$ 63 Million), Estimated

at exchange rate of 75.39 (Prev. year: 69.17) Rupees per USD)

iii. SBLC of 16 Million USD (Prev Year 16 Million) from
Indusind Bank issued to Param Mitra Resources Pte Ltd.
estimated at exchange rate of INR 75.39 (Prev. year 69.17)

iv Param Mitra Coal Resources Pte Ltd.
{Parent Gaurantee of 30 Million USD issued in
favour of Azalea Investment holdings Lid at
exrhange rate of INR 75.39 (Previous Year 69.17)

B. Bank Gaurantee issued by HDFC Bank for various works / Tenders

Bank Gaurantee No. Issued to

003GT02182120018 South eastern Coal Fields Ltd
003GT02182150009 South eastern Coal Fields Ltd
003GT02183020001 Haryana Renewable Energy Development Agency
003GT02190570013 0il India Limited

0O3GT02192250014 South eastern Coal Fields Ld
003GT02193410002 South eastern Coal Fields Ltd
003GT02200210005 South eastern Coal Fields Ltd
003GT02200600008 NTPC

C. Claims against the Company, not acknawledged as dehts®
Forum where Dispute is Name of Statute

Pending

High Court Delhi In¢ome Tax Act 1961,
High Court Delisi [ncome Tax Act 1961
High Court Dehi Income Tax Act 1961
High Court Delhi Income Tax Act 1961
Principal Commissioner,

Custom House Custom Laws

Vighakhapatnam

Principal Cominissioner,

Custom House
Vishakhapatnam

(Penalty)

Custom Laws

Date

31/07/2018
03/08/2018
29/10/2018
26/02/2019
14/08/2019
07/12/2019
21/01/2020
26/02/2020

AY

2007-08
2008-09
2009-10
2010-11

2015-16

2015-16

3,769.50 3.458.57
47,495.70 43,577.92
12,062.40 11,067.41
22,617.00 20,751.39

Amount Amount
- 762.11
- 70881
- 50.00
223.00 22200
630.40 -
754.04 -
749.22 -
50.00 -
Amount Amount
22282 22282
21263 212.A3
268.12 268.12
1,189.34 1,189.34
B887.32 897.32
100.80 100.00
91,231.50 83,559.44

# Claims against the Company, not acknowledged as debts for the year ended March 31, 2020 include demand order received from Principal
Commissioner, Custom House Vishakhapatnam for payment of custor duty of Rs. 8,87,32,309 and penalty of Rs. 1,00,060,000. The Company
has filled an appeal with CESTAT against the same.

)
B AT
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41 Segment reporting:

A.

In accordance with Ind AS 108 ‘Segrment Reporting’ on segment reporting as specified in Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rute 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014, the Company has identified three business segments
viz. Transportation & Logistics, Ol , Lubricants & Spares and Finance & Investrnent The above segments have been
identified and reported taking into account the differing risks and returns, and the current internal financial reporting
systems. For each of the segments, the Chief operating decision maker (CODM) (Chief Financial Officer) reviews internal
management reports on at least a quarterly basis. The CODM monitors the operating results separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment.

Segment accounting policies

The accounting principles consistently used in the preparation of the financial statements and consistently applied to
record revenue and expenditure in individual segments are as set out in Note 2 to the financial statements. The
accounting policies in relation to segment accounting are as under:

{a) Segment assets and liabilities

All segment assets and liabilities have been allocated to the various segments on the basis of specific identification.
Segment assets consist principally of property, plant and equipment, capital work in progress, inventories, trade
receivables, financial assets, other current assets, other non-current assets and loans. Segment assets do not include
unallocated corporate fixed assets, cash and bank balances, advance tax and other assets not specifically identifiable with
any segment.

Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities and consist principally of trade payables and accrued liabilities.
Segment liabilities do not include borrowings and those related to income taxes.

(b} Segment revenue and expenses

Segment revenue and expenses are directly attributable to the segment and have been allocated to various segments on
the basis of specific identification. Segment revenue does not include interest income and other incomes in respect of non-
segmental activities. Segment expenses do not include depreciation on unallocated corporate fixed assets, interest
expense, tax expense and other expense in respect of non-segmental activities,

Segment revenue, results and capital employed include the respective amounts identifiable to each of the segments. Other
unallocable expenditure/assets/liabilities include expenses/assets/liabilities which are not directly identifiable to any
business segment.

s e

.-/:_\_- = Dﬂ{‘:"
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SINDHU TRADE LINKS LIMITED {

(Rs. Lakh)
Segment revenue, resulis and capital employed
Particulars ' Transpo_rt:.ation & | Oil, Lubricants & Finance & Total
Logistics Spares Investment
Segment revenue
Extermal revenue 71,689.98 10,222.97 3,229.15 85,142.09
(90,198.18}) (21,840.93) (2,003.98) (1,14,043.09)
Total segment revenue 71,689.98 10,222.97 3,229.15 85,142.09
(90,198.18) (21,840.93) {2,003.98) (1,14,043.09
Segment results 9,442.83 215.48 833.28 10,491.59
(12,437.27) (476.97) {868.70) {13,782.95)
Less:Finance cost {taken to 4,784.86
unallocated expenses) ~ (5,324.38
Operating profit/(loss) 9,442.83 21548 833.28 5,706.73
(12,437.27) {476.97) {868.70) (8,458.58)
Interest and other income - 2,145.95
(1,207.92)
Net profit/(loss) before tax 9,442.83 215.48 833.28 7,852.69
(12,437.27) (476.97) (868.70} {9,666.49}
Tax expense 2,197.89
(2,655.55
Net profit/(loss) after tax 5,654.79
{7,010.93})
Other comprehensive 1,697.62
income/(loss) (355.85
Total comprehensive 7,352.41
income/(loss) for the period (7,366.78)
Depreciation/ amortization 2,509.86 28.45 46,62 2,584.93
expense (3,164.23) (18.75) (54.39) (3,237.36)
Unallocated Depreciation/ -
amortization expense -
Total Depreciation/ 2,509.86 28.45 46.62 2,584.93
amortization expense (3,164.23) (18.75) (54.39) (3,237.36)
Non-cash expenses other than - - - -
depreciation ) - - - -
Unallocated non-cash expenses -
other than depreciation o
Total non-cash expenses other - - - -
than depreciation - - - -

Figures in ( } are of previous year March,2019
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B.

744

(Rs. Lakh)
_Segment assets and segment liabilities
. Transportation & | Oil, Lubricants & Finance &
Particalars Logistics Spares Investment Tatal
Assets
Segment assets (Other than Cash 26,293.6% 1,922.32 95,873.61 1,24,089.62
and bank balances) (27,169.94) {1,828.69}) (87,453.72) (1,16,452.35)
Unallacated corporate assets 2,619.54
(4,053.32)
Cash and bank balances 81.73 11.44 153.97 247.14
{620.58) {34.00} (2,282.75) (2,937.73)
Total assets 1,26,956.30
(1,23,443.40)
Liabilities/ Shareholders’ fands
Segment liabilities 24,156.24 3,720.84 34,647.23 62,524.31
{16,568.33) (115.17) (961.82) (17,649.32)
Unallocated corporate liabilities 2,820.18
(51,534.70
Share capital 5,139.76
(5,139.76)
Reserves and surplus 56,472.03
(49,119.61)
Fotal shareholders’ funds 61,611.79
(54,259.37)
Segment capital expenditure 2,314.35 T 16.38 2,330.73
(7,251.38) {43.49} (25.76) (7,320.63)
Unallocated capital expenditure .
Total capital expenditure 2,314.35 - 16.38 2,330.73
(7,251.38) {43.49) (25.76) (7,320.63)

Figuresin ( } are as at 31 March 2019

The total of non-current assets other than financial instruments, deferred tax and post employment benefit assets,
broken down by location of assets, is shown below:

Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
India 8,328.37 10,249.72
8,328.37 10,249.72

The Company derives its 100% revenue from the customers located in India and constitute a single reportable segment
for the purpose of geographical segment reporting.

Information about major customers
Revenue from trapsactions with a single external customer amounting to 10 per cent or more of the entity’s revenue is

given as below:

Business segments Asat Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Transportation & Logistics
ACB (India) Limited 24,552.41 30,550.08
South Eastern Coalfield Ltd. 15,309.89 19,709.45
Spectrum Coal And Power Ltd. 7,746.53 -
Oil & Lubricants
Sainik Mining And Allied 3,602.68 1,457.72
Services Limited
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42. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

1. Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if 2 customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fafls to meet its
contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Company. Credit risk arises principally from trade receivables, loans &
advances, cash & cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions and customers.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed according to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer
credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits
are defined in accordance with this assessment.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number
of minor recefvables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively.

Cash and cash equivalents
The Company held cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 1721.53 Lakh at 31st March,2020 (Rs. 2179.10 Lakh at 31 March 2019) The
cash and cash equivalents are held with bank and financial institution with high rating.

Deposits with banks and financial institutions

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury department in
accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within
credit limits assigned to each counterparty.

Credit risk is managed on Company wide basis. For banks/financial institutions, only high rated banks/institutions are
accepted.

Loans .

The Company has given loans and advances as security deposits. The credit risk is managed by the Company in accordance with
the Company's policy.

(i) Exposure to creditrisk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit
risk at the reporting date was:

As at Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 months Expected Credit Losses (ECL)
Cash & cash equivalents 1,721.47 2,179.10
(Other Balance With Banks 892.95 75826
Loans 4,535.38 4,471.15
Other financial assets 5,923.34 3,882.32
Current Investments 6.89 2,364.83

13,080.03 13,655.66

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using Life time Expected Credit Losses (ECL)
Trade and other receivable 16,631.90 17,604.41
16,631.90 17,604.41
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(ii) Provision for expected credit losses

(a} Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured nsing 12 month expected credit losses

The Company has assets where the counter- parties have sufficient capacity to meet the obligations and where the risk of
defanlt is very low. Accordingly, loss allowance for impairment has not been recognised.

(b) Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using life time expected credit losses

The Company has customers with strong capacity to meet the obligations and therefore the risk of default is negligible or nil.
Further, management believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 30 days are still collectible in full,
based on historical payment behavior and extensive analysis of customer credit risk. Hence, no impairment loss has been
recognised during the reporting periods in respect of trade receivables.

(iii) Ageing analysis of trade receivables
The ageing analysis of the trade receivables is as below:

Ageing As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019

0-30 days past due 7,298.19 7,785.53
31-60 days past due 1,920.88 4.480.95
61-90 days past due 798.46 2,010.92
91-180 days 1,323.68 1,739.33
More than 180 days past due 5,290.69 1,587.68
Total 16,631.90 17,604.41

(iv) Reconciliation of impairment loss provisions
There is no impairmenrt loss provisions recognised during the year.
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42. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

2. Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both nermal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The Company has an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of short, medium and long term
funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves,
banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilitdes.

The Company's treasury department is responsible for managing the short term and long term lquidity requirements of the
Company. Short term liquidity situation is reviewed daily by Treasury. The Board of directors has established policies to
manage liquidity risk and the Company's treasury department operates in line with such policies. Any breaches of these
policies are reported to the Board of Directors. Long term liquidity position is reviewed on a regular basis by the Board of
Directors and appropriate decisions are taken according to the situation.

Typically the Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses for a period of 60
days, including the servicing of financial obligations, this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot
reasonably be predicted, such as patural disasters.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, based on contractual cash flows:

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as on 31| etlater | laterthanoneyear |, . ...,
than one and not later than Total
March 2020 five years
year five years

Non-derivative financial liabilites
Term loans from banks 10,157.98 15,119.81 25,277.79
Cash Credit 249314 2,493.14
Bill Discounting 3,887.50 3,887.50
Unsecured Loans 7,700.94 7,700.94
Retention money/security deposits 59.25 59.25
Trade payables 10,622.39 10,622.39
Expenses Payable 7,106.49 7,106.49
Dues to employees 626.54 626.54
Advance from Debtors 622.19 622.19
Total 43,276.43 15,119.81 58,396.24
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as on 31 Notlater | Later than one year Later than
March 2019 than one and not later than 6 Total

ve years

year five years

Non-derivative financial liabilitdes
Term loans from banks 9,825.41 24,248.66 34,074.07
Cash Credit 1,980.32 1,980.32
Bill Discounting 4,000.00 4,000.00
Unsecured Loans 7,352.71 7,352.71
Retention money/security deposits 58.60 58.60
Trade and other payables 7,089.71 7,089.71
Expenses Payable 5807.33 5,807.33
Dues to employees 668.54 668.94
Advance from Debtors 180.01 180.01
Total 36,783.02 24,248.66 61,031.67
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42. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management {continued)

3. Marketrisk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates will affect the
Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

The Board of directors is responsible for setting up of policies and procedures to manage market risks of the Company.
The regular reviews including diversifications of borrowings to mitigate the market risks are carried out considering
the rates of interest and other borrowing terms.

Currency risk
The Company has following financial assets/liabilities in foreign currency as at 31 March 2020 & 31 March 2019 -

Financial Liabilities

31st March 2020 | 31stMarch

Financial Liabilities 2019
Million USD Million USD
Currency Swap 11.59 12.97
Net Exposure to foreign Currency Risk 11.59 12.97
(Liabilities)
Financial Assets
31stMarch 2020 | 31st March
Financial Assets 2019
Million USD Million USD
Loan given 24.75 18.66
Net Exposure to foreign Currency Risk 24.75 18.66
{Assets)

Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk arising mainly from long term borrowings . The Company is exposed to
interest rate risk because the cash flows associated with floating rate borrowings will fluctuate with changes in interest
rates.

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows:

Particulars Asat 31 As at 31 March
March 2020 2019

Financial Assets

Fixed-rate instruments

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1,372.15 2,356.29

Loans 27,213.01 19,320.63

Other financials assets 143.00 143.00

Total 28,728.16 21,819.92

Financial Liabilities

Fixed-rate instruments

Unsecured Loans 7,700.94 7,352.71
7,700.94 7,352.71

Variable-rate instruments
Secured term loan from bank 25,121.34 33,833.41
Cash Credit 2,493.14 1,980.32
Bill Discounting 3,887.50 4.000.00
27,614.48 35,813.73

Total 35,31542 43,166.44
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Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-raie instruments
The Company’s fixed rate instruments are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk,
since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

A change of 50 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or
loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates,
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for the previous year.

Particuiars Profit/ {loss), net of tax
50bp
increase 50 bp decrease
31-Mar-20
Secured term loan from bank (84.08) 84.08
Cash credit /Bank overdraft ~ (8.34) 8.34
. {92.42) 92.42
31-Mar-19
Secured term loan from bank (117.86) 113.24
Cash credit from bank (20.75) 6.63
(138.61) 119.86
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43 Fair Value Measurenients

(a] Finangial instruruents by category

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Particulars Carrying value Carrying value
FVTPL FVO(Cl Amortised FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost
Cost

Financial assets

Non-current

Investment 18.91 327462 59,402.34 161.66 1,494.93 58,968.60
QOther financial assets - - 502.66 - - 1,619.95
Loans 22,677.63 14,849.48
Current

Trade receivables - - 16,631.90 - - 17,604.41
Cash and ca<h - - 1,721.47 - - 2,179.10
equivalents

Investimient 6.89 - - 236483 -

Loans - - 4,535.38 - - 4,471.15
Dther financial assets - - 5,923 34 - - 3,882.32
TOTAL 25.79 3,274.62 1,11,394.72 2,526.49 1,494.93 1,03,575.00
Financial liabilities

Non Current

Bormowings - - 14,9632.36 - - 24 008.00
Current

Borrowings = - 14,081.59 - - 13,333.03
Trade payables 2 - 10,622.39 - - 7,089.71
Other financial - - 18572.45 - - 16,540.29
Jiahilities

TOTAL - - 58,239.81 - - 60,971.03
(b} Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are measured at
amortzed cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs
used in determining fa5r value, the company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting
standard. An explanation of each level follows undemeath the table.

Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortized cost for which falr valnes are disclosed

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets

Investment® 7.00 329341 2,501.69 1.563.17
Loans 2721301 : 19,320.63
Security deposits - - 23.46 - - 21.92
Fixed deposits 479.20 1,598.03
Financial liabilities

Borrowings - - 25,121.34 - - 3383341

*Excluding investments in Subsidiaries, assoviates and joint venlure which is valued at cost

The Company bas an established control framework with respect to the messurement of fair values. This includes a valuation team that has
overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fajr value measurements and reports directly to the Chief finance officer. The valuatian team
regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing
services, is used to mezsure fair values, then the valuation team pssrsses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion
that these valuadens meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be
clsssified. Significant valuation issues are reported to the Company's audit committee.
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Measurement of fair values

The different levels of fair value have been defined belonw:

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments and traded
bonds that have quoted price.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques wbich
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2,

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is pot based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. The fair value of
financial assets and liabilifies included in Level 3 is determined in arvordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis using prices from 0w rvable current market wansactions and dealer guotes of similar instruments, This level includes derivative
MTM - ats/liabilities.

Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific valuation techinique used to value financial instrumeants include:

- the use of quoted market prices or dealer quoles for similar instruments

- the fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on observable yield curves
- the fair value of principal swaps ts determined using forward eschange rates at the balance sheet date

- the fair value of the financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.

(b) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortized cost

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Particulars Carrying Fair value Carrying Value Fair value

Value
Financial assets
Non-Current
Investment 62,695.87 62,695.87 60,625.19 60,625.19
Loans 22,677.63 22,677.63 14,B49.48 14,849.48
Other financial assets 502.66 502.66 1,619.95 1,619.95
Current
Trade receivables 16,621.90 16,631.90 17,604.41 17,604.41
Cash and cash equivalents 1,721.47 1,72147 2,179.10 2,179.10
Investment 6.89 689 2,364.83 2,364.83
Loang 4,53538 4,53538 4,471.15 447115
Other finandal asseis 592334 592334 3,882.32 3,882.32
TOTAL . 1,14,695.14 1,14,695.14 1,07,596.43 1,07,596.43
Financial labilities
Non Carrent
BorTowings ) 14,963.26 14,963.36 24,008.00 24,008.00
Current
Borrowings 14,081.59 14,081.59 13,333.03 13,333.03
Trade payahles 10,622.39 10,622.39 7,089.71 7,089.71
Qther financial liabilities 18,572.45 1857245 16,540.2% 16,540.29
TOTAL 58,239.80 58,239.80 60,971.02 60,971.02

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other then cash, deposits with banks and
interest accrusd but not due and other current financial g=sets and current financial liabilities, approximates the fair values, due to their short-
term nature.

Non current financial aswets consists of fixed deposits whose the cartying amounts are equal to the fair values.

Far financial aszets and Habilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.
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44 Financial Risk Management

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings in demestic currency, trade payables and
other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s
principal financial assets include loans, trade & other receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that derive directly
from its operations.

The Company is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Creditrisk

- Liquidity risk

- Market risk

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement
Credit Risk Cash and cash equivalents, |Ageing analysis
trade receivables, financial |Credit ratings
assets measured at
amortised cost.

Management
Diversification of bank
deposits, credit limits
and letters of credit

Liquidity risk Borrowings and other Cash flow forecasting |Availability of
liabilides Sensitivity analysis borrowing facilities
Market risk - Long-term borrowings at  |Sensitivity analysis Diversification and

variable rates regular review of

borrowings

interest rate risk

Risk management framework

The Company's activities makes it susceptible to various risks. The Company has taken adequate measures to address
such concerns by developing adequate systems and practices. The Company’s overall risk management program focuses
on the unpredictability of markets and seeks to manage the impact of these risks on the Company’s financial performance.

The Boeard of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management
framework. In order to institutionalize the risk management in the Company, an elaborate Enterprise wide Risk
Management (ERM) framework has been developed. As a part of the implementation of ERM framework, an Enterprise
Risk Management Committee {ERMC) with various Executive Directors as its members has been constituted with an
objective to develop and monitor the Company’s risk management policies and strengthen the risk management
framework, Enterprise risk management committee after deliberations has identified enterprise wide risk and various
action plans for short term as well as long term have been formulated to mitigate these risks.

The Committee is also responsible for reviewing and updating the risk prefile, monitoring the effectiveness of the risk
management framework and reviewing at least annually the implementation of the risk management policy and
framework The Committee reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its activities.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to moniter risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems
are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its
training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment
in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Company has policies covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, and the use of non-
derivative financial instruments. Compliance with policies and exposure limits is reviewed on a continuous basis.
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45 Capital Management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to:

- safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and

- maintain an appropriate capital structure of debt and equity.

The Board of Directors has the primary responsibility to maintain a strong capital base and reduce the cost of capital through
prudent management of deployed funds and leveraging opportunities in domestic and international financial markets so as to
maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors
menitors the return on capital, which the Company defines as result from operating activities divided by total shareholders’ equity.
The Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividends to equity shareholders.

In order to achieve the overall objective, the company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets
financial covenaants attached to the interest bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure reguirements. Breaches in
meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in
the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowings in the current period

The Company monitors capital, using a medium term view of three to five years, on the basis of a number of financial ratios
generally used by industry and by the rating agencies.

The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio which is net debt divided by total equity. Net debt comprises of long term and
short term borrowings. Equity includes equity share capital and reserves that are managed as capital. The gearing ratio at the end
of the reporting periods was as follows:

As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Total debts 39,202.93 47,166.44
Total equity ) 61,611.79 54,259.37
Net_ debt to equity 0.64 0.87

ratio
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46. Related party disclosures

As per Ind AS 24, the disclosure of transactions with related parties are given below:

(a) List of related parties where control exists and also other related parties with whom transaction have taken place

Sr.No Relationship

Name of Related Parties

1 Parent Company

2 Subsidiaries

3 Fellow Subsidiaries

4 Asiaciales

5  Key Managament Persnnnel

NIL

Hard Bhoomi Camminications Private Limited
Indus Automotives Private Limited

Param Mitra Resources Pte Limited

Sudha Bio Power Private Limited

Legend Travels Pvt Ltd

Dragem Power [nvestnients Limited

QOceania Resources Pty Limited

Pacaim Mitra Coal Resources Pre Limited
Param Mitra Coal Resources One Pie Limited
Param Mitra Coal Resources Two Pte Limited
Param Mitra Power Pte Limited

Unity Holding Business Singapore Pte Limited
Pt. Pacram Mitra Coal Muvers Pte Limited

Pt. Param Mitra Coal Risuurces

Pt, Brilian Alam Sejahtera

Pt. Krida Makmur Bersama

Pt. Rencana Mulia Barutaima

Pt. Ginhal Bumi Lumbung

Pt. Jaya [z=smandiri

Pt. Indo Bara Prajama

Shyavn Indus Pawer Salutioms Pyt Lid
Indus Best Mega Food Park Private Limited
Parzin Mitra Investments Limited

Tandein Connmercial Private Limited

Vir Sen Sindhu
Satya Pal Sindhu
Vikzs Singh Hooda
Svchi Gupta
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List of related parties Continue...

6 Relatives to Key Managenient Persomnel Rudra Sen Sindhu
Vrit Pal Sindhu
Abhimanyu Sindhu
Anika Sindhu
Dev Suman Sindhu
Mitter Sen Sindhu (HUF)
Parameshwari Devi
Rachna Sindhu
Rudra &en Sindhu -HUF
Samriti Sindha
Saroj Sindhu
Satyapal Sindhu- HUF
Saurzbh Sindhu
Sauralsh Sindhu-HUF
Sonal Sindhu
Shahizta Sindhu
Shashi Sindhu
Shaurya Sindhu
Shweta Sindhu
Swariti Sindhu
Somsvir Sindhu
Sumati Sindhu
Sumepgha Sindhu
Surbhi Sindhu
Usha sindhu
Vir Sen Sindhu- HUF
Vrit Pal Sindhu - HUF
Abhinranyn Sindhu-HUF
Sarvesh Sindhu
Ekta Sindhu
Shreya Sindhu
Satvik Sindhu
Snnal Sindhu

7  Cthers Related Parties (Key Maragement Persannel and theire relatives having substantial interest)
ACB India Limited
Adaush infraventure Private limited
B and S Realtors Private Limited
Chhatizgarh Land And Building Develnpers Pyt Ltd
Indus Autamobiles Private Limited
Indus Infra Built Private Limited
Indus Infra Developneent Private Limited
Indus Portfolio Private Limited
NOU Edge Infracalutions LLP
One Point Realty Private Limited
Sainik Mining and Allied Services Limited
Seven Sczs Fashinn Private Limited
Sindhu Farms Private Limited
Sindhu Realtrrs Limited
Kartik.ay Exploration and Mining services Pvet Ltd
Parzamitra Holdings Limited
Aryan Ispat and Power Limited
S3H Reslity Pvtltd
Sindhu Education Foundatinn Trust
Indus Educaton and Research Trust
Param Mitra Manav Nirman Sansthan
V. V. Tratisport
M. 8. & Sons
S. 8. Transport

Ly #

-l rl'. :':.a'
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{b) Transactions/outstanding balances during the yvear with related parties:
The Cnmpany has entered inta transactinns with related parties at listed belaw, The Board considers such transactions to be in
rotmal course of business:-

Particulars Subsidiaries | Associates KMP Relatives of Others Total
KMP
Transactions during the year
Comstruction Receipts - - - - 242.25 242.25
- - - - [135.24) (135.24)
| nzding Receipts 13.35 - - = 6,913.34 6,926.69
[1335) & E - moaz2n]  [8.05658)
Support service to mining - - - - £,052.70 6,052.70
Receipts - - - - (4806.17)] {4.806.17
Tranzpnrtatnn Receipts - - - - 27,404.69 27,404.69
3 = - (27,125.60)] (27,125 60)
Water Sprinkle Receipts - 5 - - 660.00 66030
- - - - (525 00) (525 DY
Sale of Diesel, Petrol & Lubricants - - 3.842.13 3,842.13
- - - -l [15,371.79} [(15,371.79)
Sale of Investments - - 40.93 - 40.93
- (35,807 (35.80]
hiterest Income 1,900.87 - - - - 1,500 87
[1,322.58) - - - _ (31.63)] (1,354.21
Dividend Incume - - - - 1.45 1.45
v - = - (1.45) (1.45)
Rental Income 158 2.40 RA.N2 950.40
[2.71) (240} [78.53) (90 54}
Purchiise of Diesel, Petrol & - - - - 3.137.46 3,137.46
Lubricants : 5 | (750069  (7.50069)
Purchase of Tyre, Lubricents & 426.72 - - - 426.72
Spaies (1,723.94} - - -l [1,723.94)
Transportation Charges paid 414.00 7,672.00 5,386.00 13,472.00
- - [%35.00) [9,177.00} (7,833.00)] (17,845.00})]"
Salary/Director Remuneration - - 153.2% - - 153.29
- - [152.41) - - (152.41)
hiterest Paid - 61A.50 135.24 5,04 760.78
- [344.42) (42.13) (174.64) (561.39])
Rent Paid = 4.80 774 12.54
- [4.80) {7.74) [12.54)
Advartiseiment & Publicity 1.70 - - - 176
{1.14) - - - [1.14)
Suppott service to mining charges - - - 6,336.81 6,336 81
paid - - - ' [3R3A.AR)] (3,836 68]
Hiring charges Paid - - - -
- - - ! (36.85) (36 85}
Grading Receipts 25,20 25.20
Loading Charges 5.78 5.78
sale of motor vehicle 27,00 27.00
sale of spares 1.07 871.39 B72.46
(SR Expenses - - - 72.60 72.60
= - = - (73.40) (73 60}
Inter Corpirate - - 4.893.50 131550 1,408 .40 7,617.60
Depasit/Unstcured Loan taken - - (5,555 N3} {2,352.80) [914.28} (8.822.09)
Inter Corporate - 5,252 88 2,003.36 4482 60 7,705 84
Deposit/Unsecured l.oan taken - {3,819.12) (1,109.96) (3,6689.65} (8,618.73)
Advanies Received - - - -
- - - (0.11) (0.11)
Advances Received repaid - - - - -
3 - - [1.69) [1.69)
Investment 101.85 - - - - 101.85
[5.580.24) {730.19) - - -l (631043)
Disinvestment - - - - - ~
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{b) Transactions with related parties continue..
Particulars Suhsidiaries | Associates KMP Relatives of Others Total
KMP
Share Application Money Given ¢ - .
(101 85) [250.00] (351.85)
Share Application Maney Given - 4 - c : B
Refunded - £ = . = =
Inter Corporate Depnsit & Loan 4,21R 65 - o 4,218 A5
Given [2,876.01) - [50.00}] [3.02601)
Inter Corporate Depnsit & Eoan = = 2
Given received back [4,044.00) (405.22)| (4,449.22)
Advanres Given l 56.75 5A.75
[13.24) (13.24)
Advapres Given received back - - - - 61.04 61.04
- (54.53) - - [166.38) (220,91}
Outstanding balances as at year end
Inter corporate deposit veceived - - - = 973.48 973.48
- - - - - (8.95) {(8.95)
Unsecured Loan - - 5,545.82 974.72 - 6,520.56
- - (5,351.36} [1,537.26} -l (6,888 563)
Trade Payables 1,220.41 4,765.50 5,985 62
(2,199.12) (1,744.36) (3,543.45)
Transport Charges payable 151.00 1,396.00 228 00 1,775.00
[96.21) {923.24) (122807 (3,142.24)
Inter Corporate Deposits Given 15,923 50 - -| 18,52350
[13,803.98} - -| [13,BG3.98)
Trade Advance - - - - - -
Share Appli «tinn Money given - 250.00 250.00
(101.85) [250.00) (351.85)
Advances Given 24713 247.13
(251.42) (251.42)
Trade Receivahle 3245 0:54 9,660.48 9,693.67
(6.34) (7,153.42]| (7,159.76}

Figures in { ) are as at 31st March, 2018

(e) Compensation of key Managerial Personnel
The remuneration of director and other member of key managerial personnel during the year was as follows:
2019-20 2018-19
Shart Term Benefits 153.2% 152.41
Toral 153.29 152.41

47

In accordance with the [nd AS-17 on “Les-as’, the following discdosure in respect of Operating Leases is made.

The obligatinns on long-term operating leases payable as per the rentals stated in the respective agreements ace as follows:

Futue minimuin lease payable

31st March 2020

31st March 2019

Motlater than 1 year

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years

Later than & years

49.20
117.26

49.20
170.56

The operating Jease arrangements, are renewable on a periodic basis and for most of the Jeases extend up to a maximum of
§ years frum their respective dates of inueption and relales to rented preemises. Same of these lease agreements have price

escalatinn clauses,
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48 Corporate Sacial responsibility (CSR)

a) CSR Amount required to be spent as per section 135 of companies act, 2013 read with schedule V1 thereof by the
company during the year is Rs 196.09 Lakh[ previous year Rs 206.15 Lakh).

b) Expenditure related to corporate social responsibility is Rs 72.60 Lakh (previous year 73.60 Lakh).

Details of amount spent towards CSR given below:

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Environment Conservalion & Sustainability

Education 72.60 73.60
Total 72.60 272.10

49 In the opinion of the management, the value on realisation of current assets, loans & advances in the ordinary
course of business would not be less than the amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet and provisions
for all known liabilities has been made. Further Debit and Credit balances are subject to confirmations.

50 Previous Year Figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary in line with Ind AS

51 The Financial Statements were authorised for issue by the directors on 1st September,2020
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